
 

NOTICE: Given 2 business days’ notice, an interpreter will be made available for the hearing impaired 
or those with limited English proficiency. Contact person: Ruth Post, (541) 929-6148. 
 

 

 

CITY OF PHILOMATH 
980 Applegate Street 
PO Box 400 
Philomath, OR  97370 
541-929-6148 
541-929-3044 FAX 
www.ci.philomath.or.us 
Mission:  To promote ethical and responsive municipal government which provides its 
citizenry with high quality municipal services in an efficient and cost effective manner. 

  
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

980 Applegate Street 
 

August 26, 2019 
6:00 p.m. 

 
MEETING AGENDA 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
3.1 Minutes of July 15, 2019 
3.2     Minutes of July 22, 2019 
3.3     Minutes of July 29, 2019   

 
4. DISCUSSION & DECISION  
          4.1 PC19-02 et al 

• Agenda Item Summary – Lepman Master Plan  
• Public Testimony (received from 7/29/2019 to 8/13/2019) 
• Applicant Rebuttal  

 
5. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 

NEXT MEETING  
 

September 16, 2019 @ 6:00 p.m. 
 



1 

PHILOMATH PLANNING COMMISSION 1 
MINUTES 2 

July 15, 2019 3 
4 
5 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Stein called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm6 
7 

2. ROLL CALL:8 
Present: Commissioners Joseph Sullivan, Steve Boggs, Peggy Yoder, and Chair 9 

David Stein.  10 
11 

Staff: Chris Workman, City Manager; Patrick Depa, Planner; and Ashley 12 
Howell, Building Permit Clerk, Ruth Post, City Recorder. 13 

14 
15 
16 
17 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:18 
3.1 May 20, 2019, Minutes –19 

20 
MOTION: Commissioner Boggs moved/Commissioner Sullivan second, the May 20, 21 
2019, minutes be approved.  Motion APPROVED 4-0. (Yes: Sullivan, Boggs, Yoder, 22 
Stein; No: None.) 23 

24 
Commissioner Boggs spoke to the passing of former City Planner, Jim Minard.  He 25 
asked the public, Commission and City staff for a moment of silence.   26 

27 
Old Business- Chair Stein suggested making a motion to send the modified Annexation 28 
Criteria to City Council as they did in May.  29 

30 
MOTION: Commissioner Boggs moved/Commissioner Yoder second, to pass on the 31 
Annexation Criteria to the City Council.  Motion APPROVED 4-0. (Yes: Sullivan, 32 
Boggs, Yoder, Stein)  33 

34 
35 

4. PUBLIC HEARING – opened at 6:03pm by Chair David Stein36 
4.1 File Number: PC19-02, PC19-03, PC19-04, PC19-05, PC19-06, PC19-0737 

  Applicant: Scott Lepman Company 38 
  Application Type: 39 

• Master Plan (PC19-02)40 
• Industrial Flex Space (PC19-03)41 
• Indoor Storage/Outdoor Storage – Boat & RV (PC19-04)42 
• RV Park (PC19-05)43 
• Conditional Use Permit (PC19-06)44 
• Lot Coverage Variance (PC19-07)45 

Location: 617 N 19th St., Assessor’s Map 12612, Tax Lot 100, 200 & 201 46 
47 

Commissioner Yoder stated that she did a site visit. 48 
49 

Chair Stein proposed holding the public hearing open to July 29, 2019.  He explained that this is 50 
a very complex proposal and that continuing the hearing to July 29, 2019 would allow the public 51 
more time to participate and for preparation for further public testimony. 52 

Agenda Item #3.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



 

2 
 

MOTION: Commissioner Yoder moved/Commissioner Boggs second, to continue the 53 
Public Hearing to the July 29, 2019 at 7:00 p.m.  Motion APPROVED 3-1. (Yes: Boggs, 54 
Yoder, Stein; No: Sullivan)   55 

 56 
MOTION AMENDMENT: Commissioner Yoder moved/Commissioner Sullivan second to 57 
keep the continuation meeting on July 29, 2019 at 6:00 p.m.  Motion Approved 3-1. (Yes: 58 
Sullivan, Boggs, Yoder; No: Stein)     59 

 60 
Staff Report -- City Planner, Patrick Depa, summarized the Staff Report.  He explained that this 61 
is a mixed-use industrial project but has been referred to as a master plan overlay due to the 62 
property being over 10 acres.  He explained that the Planning Commission would decide on all 63 
six applications.  He further explained that all the property involved is industrial but some of it is 64 
split-zone.  He listed the first four cases for review: Master Plan Overlay, Industrial Flex Space, 65 
Indoor Storage, Outdoor Storage, and Boat and RV project.  He explained the Master Plan 66 
Overlay and that it is closely related to the comprehensive plan and policies.  He explained that 67 
it follows very closely to the impact studies. He addressed the Commissioners regarding 68 
findings and conditions and the removal of some conditions due to them being public facilities, 69 
water and draining, for example.  He explained that the type three, Site Design Reviews, are 70 
also looked at very closely in conjunction with the code.  He discussed an item that required a 71 
variance, the paving of RV and Boat Storage.  He explained that the applicant is requesting that 72 
it not be paved at this time due to demand in question for boat or outdoor storage vs. indoor 73 
storage and possible building expansion.  He explained that he recommends the 74 
Commissioners put a time restriction on that variance.  He discussed the Conditional Use case 75 
for the viewing platforms that encroach into the riparian corridor.  He explained that this is a 76 
private trail that runs into the RV Park.  He found that there was little to no effect to the proposal.  77 
He recommended to the Commission that this be a separate approval and motion.  He 78 
discussed the design standards and the mixed masonry type materials.  He discussed the 79 
vacation of 20th street and that the applicant would pursue this with Benton County should their 80 
application be approved.  81 
 82 
Commissioner Yoder referred to page 7 and stated that the DEQ listed the site as suspect and 83 
in need of more review.  She asked if the City should require better ground samples at the 84 
location of the old septic tanks and drain fields under discussion, to verify that there is not 85 
anything harmful since they have been sitting for many years.  It is still in question if in fact the 86 
septic tanks and drain fields are still there, however.  She further explained that her concern 87 
was the property soil and remaining elements that may or may not be harmful.  She suggested 88 
that perhaps there should be more testing.  Mr. Depa explained that there is different criteria 89 
under State and Federal Statute for industrial vs. residential sites.   90 
 91 
Commissioner Yoder addressed the Traffic Impact Analysis on page 9 of the Staff Report and 92 
that it indicates there is 22 trips in the morning and 38 trips at night, however Exhibit B, from the 93 
applicant lists, 78 trips in the morning and 11 trips at night.  She asked how does the 94 
Commission know which is accurate.  Mr. Depa asked to come back to this question to verify 95 
those numbers.  He explained, however that the low numbers are due to the cliental of the RV 96 
park.  Since most of the cliental of the RV Park will most likely not be traveling during peak 97 
hours since they are recreational users.  They are not going to work and coming home from 98 
work during typical hours each day.  He explained that there is a different matrix used to 99 
analyze traffic in RV parks.   100 

Agenda Item #3.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



 

3 
 

Presentation by Applicant- Scott Lepman introduced himself as a real estate appraiser in 101 
Albany, OR.  He explained that he owns the Blue Ox RV Park in Albany, Oregon and the 102 
Storage Depot in Corvallis, Oregon.  He invited all public, staff, and Commissioners to please 103 
visit both sites and/or ask him about how either site is managed should there be any questions 104 
or concerns.  He explained that he is excited about this project and believes the application that 105 
has been prepared for this project is thorough and significant.  He explained that he would like 106 
to enter into the record a letter by Bob and Becky Bazemore, consultants for RV Parks that rate 107 
parks around the State.   108 
 109 
Mr. Lepman discussed the potential RV and Storage Unit site.  He explained that the discussed 110 
property consists of old industrial sites that have been abandoned. He discussed that there is a 111 
significant amount of rock and concrete that still exists and that the area where the Boat and RV 112 
storage will go consists of mostly concrete slabs, currently.  He explained that the Northern 113 
parcel is mostly concrete pads.  He addressed the question related to environmental studies 114 
and that the Commissioners should have copies of all environmental studies that have been 115 
done on the property.  He explained that the consultants used on the project are all present at 116 
this meeting and that the Commission is welcome address them at any time.  He introduced 117 
each consultant: Wetland Consultant, Allen Martin, Engineer, Brian Vandetta, Traffic Engineer 118 
Carl Bergy, and Employee Candace Ribera.  He stated that he supports findings of the Staff 119 
Report.   120 
 121 
Commissioner Yoder explained after viewing the Blue Ox RV park website, it states that 70% of 122 
the cliental are long-term and 30% are short term.  Mr. Lepman explained that under Good 123 
Samaritan, there must be at least 30% of the park must be available for daily customers.  He 124 
explained that there are a good number of people that stay for 2 to 6 months, such as 125 
construction workers, or that perhaps they will have cliental staying for events related to Oregon 126 
State University. 127 
 128 
Commissioner Boggs asked if he had any time frame limits for cliental to stay at the park.  Mr. 129 
Lepman explained that they do not have any time limit restrictions, currently.  Chair Stein asked 130 
the applicant if new permanent residents of Philomath might take up a number of the RV 131 
spaces.  Mr. Lepman replied that it could happen.  He discussed the concern of housing 132 
affordability in Philomath, Benton County and the State of Oregon and that this RV park may be 133 
an option for some cliental.  He discussed his screening process and that he does background 134 
checks on all applicants of the RV Park. 135 
 136 
Mr. Lepman explained that he believes there is a market and sees the need for an RV park in 137 
Benton County.  He stated that there is only Benton Woods RV Park.  He explained that Benton 138 
Woods is providing a housing need, but that their tenants have to move out once a year for the 139 
Benton County Fair.   140 
 141 
Chair Stein asked if there are any population estimations of children who would be attending 142 
public school, or the potential amount of residents that may have taxing effects on public 143 
services such as fire and police.  Mr. Lepman explained that at the Blue Ox RV park he 144 
currently only has around three or four children staying in the park.  He discussed the various 145 
scenarios in which there might be children present in the park for an extended stay.  He 146 
discussed further examples of extended stay cliental such as, construction workers and cliental 147 
who may only have a few months’ worth of business in town.  He stated that although these 148 
cliental may tax the community, he believes they will also participate in the community by 149 
utilizing local businesses.  Chair Stein stated that although he appreciates Mr. Lepman trying to 150 
be clear regarding his likely cliental, there are potential effects that he has not seen addressed.   151 
 152 

Agenda Item #3.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



 

4 
 

Candace Ribera introduced herself as an employee of Mr. Lepman.  She spoke to the long-term 153 
stay of cliental being month to month only.  She explained that some of the cliental continue to 154 
pay their spots on a monthly basis although they are not currently staying in the park.  She 155 
further explained that these cliental are included in the 70% long-term occupants at the Blue Ox.   156 
 157 
Commissioner Yoder asked if the cost of the spaces at the RV Park would be the same as the 158 
Blue Ox in Albany.  Mr. Lepman explained that since the facility is new the cost might be higher 159 
than in Albany.  He explained that the capital required might be more because of the quality of 160 
the facility.   161 
 162 
Commissioner Sullivan addressed Mr. Lepman and thanked him for considering Philomath.  He 163 
explained that when reviewing the application he has concerns when comparing it to the City’s 164 
comprehensive plan.  He cited, Section 2, Economy, number 22, The City should encourage the 165 
development and expansion of business, which serves tourists that travel through and visit the 166 
community.  He then cites Section 3, Housing, goal 10, At the extreme end there is 167 
homelessness, and some people do not have any shelter at all.  Close behind follows sub-168 
standard housing with health and safety problems, space problems, the structure is adequate 169 
but overcrowded and economic and social problems.  Commissioner Sullivan stated when 170 
discussing the length of stay of cliental at the RV park, based on the prior readings from the 171 
City’s Comprehensive Plan, there is not enough information in the application for the 172 
Commission to make a decision about whether or not the park is primarily attracting tourists or 173 
unintentionally offering sub-standard housing.  He discussed the Comprehensive Plan in 174 
regards to aiding the local economy. He cited the goal of the Comprehensive Plan, Industrial 175 
Land Use, to maintain protect and expand the City’s existing industries.  Promote and provide a 176 
diversified industrial base that will provide jobs for both the existing and future labor source. He 177 
explained that when addressing the storage facility proposal, it does not appear that it is justified 178 
based on some sort of an economic value to the City.  He discussed a few questions raised 179 
when looking at Mr. Lepman’s application: mixed-use that could potentially house incoming 180 
businesses and the RV Park for tourists.  He noted that there does not seem to be much 181 
justification for a Storage Park.  Mr. Lepman spoke to the industrial flex space and that it will 182 
provide opportunities for employment.  He explained that as an appraiser, there does not 183 
appear to be any significant market evidence for such flex space.  He explained that if the boat 184 
and RV Park does prove to be of high demand, that there is flex space to expand.   185 
 186 
Commissioner Yoder clarified that should the demand for space rise, the boat and RV storage 187 
could be used as such.  Mr. Lepman replied that the Boat and RV space is of interim use.  He 188 
explained that the size of the site is significant and that they are testing different uses to see 189 
which will have more market demand.  Mr. Workman addressed the Staff Report and that the 190 
application is being submitted as Boat and RV storage.  He explained that if use were to change 191 
it would have to come back to the Planning Commission in a separate application as a Major 192 
Modification.   193 
 194 
Chair Stein asked the applicant why the RV sites were placed next to the railroad tracks. Mr. 195 
Lepman explained that the two water influences attracted him and that there would be a 196 
masonry wall between the railroad tracts RV’s.  He explained that he owns and appraises 197 
property that are both next to railroad tracts.  He explained that most of the population says that 198 
they get used to the passing of trains and that he would discuss this with his potential 199 
customers.   200 
 201 
Chair Stein asked if Mr. Lepman would explain the site map display that was brought in for 202 
review.   203 
 204 

Agenda Item #3.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



 

5 
 

Mr. Lepman described the site map and gave point to directions, physical landmarks and 205 
roadways.  He explained that the sign will be down in a hole and that is why it is so tall.  He 206 
explained that the RV manager would live on-site at all times.  He explained that the walking 207 
path goes all the way around the park and is joined with the bike path for the City without 208 
conflict.  He discussed the park amenities that include a pool and patio overlooking the creek, 209 
an enclosable patio space and dog park.  He discussed the storage facility that has access from 210 
Highway 20.  He explained that there would be a separate manager on site at all times for the 211 
Storage Facility.  He explained that they have done a flood study and their own engineer 212 
reviewed FEMA’s data regarding a flood event and what would happen to the park and 213 
neighbors should the waters jump Newton Creek. 214 
 215 
Brian Vandetta introduced himself as the project’s Civil Engineer.  He pointed out on the display 216 
the undeveloped City Park and discussed that there is an easement being left out and dedicated 217 
to the City.  Commissioner Yoder addressed the Traffic Impact Analysis and left hand turns off 218 
Philomath Boulevard.  Commissioner Boggs asked about RV waste dumpsites.  Mr. Lepman 219 
explained that there would be no dumpsites, but site-to-site hookups.  Commissioner Sullivan 220 
asked which paths included on the site display would be public and private.  Ms. Ribera 221 
explained that the public paths are on the perimeter of the property.  Mr. Lepman explained that 222 
the park also has its own private path.   223 
 224 
Commissioner Yoder asked for clarification on the encroachment of the viewing area to the 50-225 
foot riparian areas.  She asked how development would be impacted if the viewing area did not 226 
encroach.  Mr. Lepman discussed that the perimeter trail would be lost and that the site could 227 
not be developed without affecting wetlands.  He discussed that Wetland Mitigation credits will 228 
be purchased.  Mr. Lepman introduced Allen Martin, the project’s Wetland Consultant.  He 229 
discussed the permit application to the Regulatory Agencies for Wetlands.  He addressed the 230 
analysis that were made.  Commissioner Yoder spoke to the 7.3 wetlands on the property and 231 
that she would like to see all of the wetlands protected.  Mr. Martin clarified that although they 232 
have submitted the review to the Wetland Agencies, they have not received a report on the 233 
reviews.  He explained that it is about a six to twelve month process.  Commissioner Yoder 234 
asked on what grounds the Regulatory Agency for Wetlands would deny the study.  Mr. Martin 235 
explained that this encroaches on speculation.  Mr. Lepman explained that if the Regulatory 236 
Agency for Wetlands does not accept the analysis report created by Mr. Martin, then the 237 
applicant would have to submit a new Master Plan.  Mr. Martin discussed the questions that the 238 
Regulatory Agencies for Wetlands will consider for approval.  Mr. Lepman discussed the plan of 239 
execution to fill the wetlands.  Mr. Workman clarified that number 11 of conditions for approval 240 
requires that the applicant must provide copies of all environmental studies, assessments 241 
preformed and additional local State or Federal permits required for development.    242 
 243 
Chair Stein asked to break for 5 minutes at 7:24 and to reconvene at 7:30 p.m.   244 
 245 
Chair Stein called the Public Hearing back to order at 7:30 p.m.  246 
 247 
Mr. Lepman announced that the traffic engineer used for this project is present if someone 248 
would like to ask him any questions.    249 
 250 
 251 
 252 
 253 
 254 
 255 
 256 
 257 
 258 

Agenda Item #3.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



 

6 
 

Presentation by Proponents-  259 
 260 
Tim Wenger - Philomath, OR – Mr. Wenger spoke in favor of the development.  He explained 261 
that he lives very close to the development.  He explained that he supports the development of 262 
a well-managed RV park.  He also explained that he sees a housing need in the City.  He 263 
explained that he feels that this will help in the housing shortage in the nation and in Oregon.  264 
He explained that his daughter visited 25 manufactured home parks in Yamhill County and that 265 
there were no spaces available.  He explained that these are the only low-cost affordable 266 
housing that is available.  He explained that he likes this better than a mill and humanitarianly 267 
that it will provide housing.  He explained that in visiting the Self-Storage in Corvallis he feels 268 
that this will be a well ran park.   269 
 270 
Presentation by Opponent’s-  271 
 272 
Jeff Lamb - Philomath, OR – Mr. Lamb spoke in opposition of the Lepman project.  He 273 
explained that he does not blame Scott Lamb for wanting to join the Philomath family.  He 274 
addressed the fact that three of the Commissioners are gone during the most important land 275 
use decision in Philomath.  He discussed a past Finance Committee meeting and indirectly 276 
quoted, Mr. Workman saying that we (the City) encourage development that does not use a lot 277 
of water.  He stated that he believes this proposal is equivalent to a small privately owned city.  278 
He expressed his distaste for the Lepman application on the City website that contains 40 279 
different attachments with hundreds of pages.  He addressed the May 20, 2019 minutes 280 
regarding a question that Sandy Heath asked.  Ms. Heath asked if the City was currently 281 
operating under the new or old development criteria.  Mr. Lamb indirectly quoted Mr. Workman 282 
from the May 20, 2019 meeting minutes stating that the City is operating under the current 283 
criteria until the new criteria is approved.  He addressed the Staff Report and stated that he has 284 
never seen the criteria on which the Lepman project is being approved.  He explained to the 285 
Commission that it is not up to them to give the citizens of Philomath water away.  He stated 286 
that this project is going to destroy the community of Philomath’s identity.  He explained that this 287 
project would simply be just bringing in rich people and would put more cost on the current local 288 
residents.  He stated, enough and that Philomath is not for sale.   289 
 290 
Sandy Heath - Philomath, OR – Ms. Heath spoke in opposition to the Lepman project.  She read 291 
her statement into the record (see supplemental agenda item A).  She explained that she would 292 
like to discuss infrastructure in the community, hard and soft.  She discussed the examples of 293 
hard and soft infrastructure and read their definitions.  She explained that she has tried several 294 
times in the past to show her position on growth and development in the community.  She 295 
explained that she is not anti-growth but rather that she would like to grow Philomath efficiently.  296 
She explained that Philomath is not ready to sustain the new projects that have been put upon 297 
it.  She explained that this project would be a huge draw on the City’s current infrastructure and 298 
that it is not affordable housing nor permanent residents. She explained that she believes the 299 
cliental would be transient passers through that would have no sense of ownership in the 300 
livability of Philomath.  She asks that the City and the Commission be more creative in finding 301 
additional funding for huge infrastructure projects such as this.   302 
 303 
Anne Buell - Philomath, OR – Ms. Buell spoke in opposition to the Lepman project.  She read 304 
her statement into the record (see supplemental agenda item B).  She discussed that she has a 305 
degree Wild Life Science.  She explained that this project serves as a threat to the population of 306 
the Checker Mallow plant.   She discussed the potential of RV residents picking the flowers.  307 
She explained that she questions how the site is being divided.  She discussed various reports 308 
proving the extinction of the Checker Mallow plant.  She discussed the need for the City of 309 
Philomath to take more action in preserving the Checker Mallow flower.  She asked that the 310 
Commission vote no on this project.   311 
 312 

Agenda Item #3.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



 

7 
 

Allen Buell - Philomath, OR – Mr. Buell spoke in opposition to the Lepman project.  He 313 
explained that the property is listed in the Environmental Clean-up Site data base file number 314 
233.  He discussed that in the Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment, the DEQ learned of a 315 
Petroleum machine that affected Newton Creek.  He explained that DEQ claims the site is 316 
medium-low priority requiring further investigation.  He discussed two reports of septic systems 317 
with drain fields and that these septic systems were not found after a walk through.  He asks the 318 
question, are the septic systems there or not.  He asked if 60% of the project is developed now, 319 
would the applicant come back later and develop the remaining 40%.  He asked if, the 320 
developers will get half price water or will they pay their fair share.  He stated that there is a 321 
traffic problem in Philomath and that this will only add more traffic to our area, for OSU, not 322 
Philomath.   323 
 324 
May Dasch – Philomath, OR - Ms. Dasch spoke in opposition to the Lepman project.  She read 325 
her statement into the record (see supplemental agenda item C).  She explained that she is 326 
extremely worried about the large RV Park and what impact it will have on the City’s water 327 
supply and already congested traffic.  She addressed a report from 2018 by West Tech 328 
Engineering, quoting that the four water sources in Philomath are uncertain.  She quoted 329 
excerpts from the report stating the uncertainty of the Mary’s River water supply, especially 330 
during August and September.  She also quoted the report speaking to the end of the Corvallis 331 
Intertie Agreement in 2027.  She spoke to the ninth and 11th street wells, their poor water supply 332 
and proposed use.  She explained that the staff report does not address the impact on local 333 
property owners and their water supply.  334 
 335 
Catherine Biscoe - Philomath, OR – Ms. Biscoe spoke in opposition to the Lepman project.  She 336 
explained that the Lepman project application consists of nearly 600 pages, the Commissioner’s 337 
packets of over 100 pages, and in that, the staff report is around 40.  She discussed concerns 338 
about water, and quoted West Tech Engineering’s study from the City’s Master Plan, suggesting 339 
that the City should try to attract dry or low water users rather than industries that require large 340 
quantities of water.  She stated that in the extensive application, she did not find the cost of the 341 
infrastructure in order to serve this industrial complex.  She explained that currently the City of 342 
Philomath is the highest tax rate paying City in Benton County.  She asked what is the water 343 
unit rate that the cliental of the RV Park will be paying and will each RV have their own water 344 
meter.  She asked about the cost of the landscape and maintenance of the park.  She stated 345 
that the phase one assessment is inadequate in regards to the environmental studies.  She 346 
addressed the RV age and quality requirements and that the expense of those RV’s would not 347 
qualify as affordable housing.  She explained that the timing of the staff report release made it 348 
hard to review this packet.  She asked that the completion of the environmental and water 349 
assessments be completed and evaluated before the Commission votes on this project.  She 350 
asks that the cost to the community be evaluated, as well.     351 
 352 
Greg Frost – Philomath, OR – Mr. Frost spoke in opposition to the Lepman project.  He 353 
explained that he has lived in Philomath since 1977.  He explained that around that time he 354 
lived on a gravel road and that Main Street was the only paved road.  He stated that although all 355 
citizens were allowed to travel on their road, the residents of his road were required to pay 356 
around $5,000.00 to pave their street.  He explained that he sees local residents that are 357 
stressed out over water unite prices and property tax rates rising.  He discussed the congestion 358 
of traffic on Main Street and 19th and that it will be even more congested when school is in 359 
session.  He addressed the Commissioners that the citizens trust them to do what is right and 360 
not bring in more projects that will raise taxes.   361 
 362 

Agenda Item #3.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



 

8 
 

Marcy Stolpey – Philomath, OR- Ms. Stolpey spoke in opposition to the Lepman project.  She 363 
explained that she is surprised to find out that not only are they discussing and RV Park, but a 364 
trailer park is as well.  She stated that she commuted for several years as a Mental Health 365 
Specialist with Linn County and commuted from Philomath.  She questioned how traffic could be 366 
predicted between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m., especially when school is in session.  She challenged the 367 
Commissioners, staff and audience to commute between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. while school and 368 
Oregon State University is in session to see the extensive traffic congestion.  She explained that 369 
due to her experience as a Child and Family Therapist she predicts that there will be a large 370 
number of children that will be living in the RV Park.  She stated that in the thousands of families 371 
she worked with, almost half of the children from those families lived in a trailer park 372 
permanently.  She asked that we not pattern the City after Albany and South Corvallis.  She 373 
discussed her concern for her house value and how much she pays in taxes.  She stated that 374 
she likes to garden and her water bill is extremely high.  She questions whether people will want 375 
to live in Philomath due to high property taxes and water rates.  She explained that even if she 376 
owned a nice RV that she would not want to stay at the RV Park because of the odd location 377 
and close proximity of the railroad tracks.  She is concerned about the impact of the project on 378 
the Cities water, sewer, schools and property values.  She questioned the voting system of the 379 
Planning Commission, due to the large amount of people she knows that oppose numerous 380 
past annexations.   381 
 382 
Robert Biscoe – Philomath, OR – Mr. Biscoe spoke in opposition to the Lepman project.  He 383 
explained that the flex space proposed in the Lepman project could potentially promote good 384 
business growth and development.  He explained that he does not see any studies with the 385 
volume of water that the RV Park will be using with the 175 spaces.  He explained that the 386 
engineers in the past encouraged the City to be looking toward water conservation and that the 387 
RV Park does not represent that.  He discussed his concerns for traffic and safety.  He 388 
discussed his concerns for the triple high storage and the close proximity to Highway 20.  He 389 
explained that the Lepman storage in Corvallis is maintained very well.  He explained that the 390 
triple high storage would be more desirable if not visible from the road and perhaps should be 391 
located out of sight from the main road, similar to that of the Corvallis Storage Units.  He 392 
questions some of the staff report items and identification of criteria that he is not aware of being 393 
in the code.   394 
 395 
Lawrence Johnson – Philomath, OR – Mr. Johnson spoke in opposition to the Lepman project.  396 
He stated that he conquers with all of the opponents that have spoken thus far.  He explained 397 
that although Mr. Lepman prepared a very detailed report and presentation, being a business 398 
owner Mr. Lepman should know how much sewer and water would be used.  He expressed 399 
concern on the lack of statistical data concerning water.  He addressed the 175 stalls and asked 400 
if they will each be metered.  He stated that each property owner present at the meter is paying 401 
ten dollars a month extra for their meters, and asked should the 175 RV spots have their own 402 
meters, will they also be paying and extra ten dollars a month.  He stated that water rates would 403 
double.  He asked if the cliental in the park would be penalized if they use too much water.  He 404 
questioned if this type of development has a sweetheart deal where they do not have to pay as 405 
much as Philomath residents and asked the Commission to review this issue.  He stated that 406 
this is not affordable housing, rather a gated community with expensive RV units.  He discussed 407 
previous testimony by Marcy Stolpey and that this RV Park would have an impact on Philomath 408 
schools due to the high amount of school age children that will be present in the park.  He 409 
explained that the environmental studies and mitigation reports should be completed before the 410 
application be considered.  He stated that the water issue is being overlooked and that the 411 
application is incomplete.  He claims that Mr. Lepman evaded answers to the questions asked 412 
by Commissioner’s.  He asked that the record be held open.   413 
 414 

Agenda Item #3.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



 

9 
 

Machi Nunnemaker Philomath, OR -- Mr. Nunnemaker spoke in opposition to the Lepman 415 
project.  He addressed a City of Philomath Water Forum from 2015, and states that the 416 
Regional Water Master had drafted a letter to the City encouraging the restriction of water 417 
usage by residents due to low flow in the Mary’s River.  He explained that he is a lifelong 418 
resident of Philomath, and is not against growth.  He stated that he is concerned that the City 419 
will go past what it can sustain and not sink into a ghost town.  420 
 421 
Commissioner Sullivan addressed his dislike for traffic, lack of affordable housing, and the rise 422 
of property taxes.  He discussed the requirements and decision-making process followed by a 423 
specific set of guidelines written in the comprehensive plan in 1999.  He suggested that all 424 
citizens for or against this development get a copy of the Philomath Comprehensive Plan and 425 
the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development and parallel their propositions 426 
or oppositions by those guidelines.  He explained that for the opposition to be considered it must 427 
fall under the rules and guidelines presented in the Comprehensive Plan.   428 
 429 
Mr. Lepman explained that some of the issues that he heard from opposing parties he was not 430 
aware of in the community.  He stated that he would be seeking more information regarding 431 
water usage from his existing RV Park.  He explained that although he senses some hostility 432 
from citizens that any value that this project will bring to the community will actually help to lower 433 
property taxes.  He stated that he would try to address all testimony at the next meeting.   434 
 435 
Chair Stein explained that there is a Development and Annexation Code.  He discussed that the 436 
Planning Commission’s decision must be based on facts and not positive or negative opinions. 437 
He discussed that the public hearing will be open for another two weeks so that those in 438 
opposition can address the Commission with facts and not opinions.  He stated that the Public 439 
Hearing would reopen at 6:00 p.m. on July 29, 2019.   440 
 441 
 442 
 443 
Presentation by Neutral Parties- NONE  444 
 445 

 446 
5. ADJOURNMENT: 447 

There being no further business, Chair Stein adjourned the meeting at 8:32 p.m. 448 
 449 
SIGNED:      ATTEST: 450 

 451 
______________________________ ______________________________ 452 
David Stein, Chair    Ashley Howell, Building Permit Clerk 453 

Agenda Item #3.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



1 

1 
PHILOMATH PLANNING COMMISSION 2 

MINUTES  3 
WORK SESSION  4 

July 22, 2019  5 
6 
7 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Stein called the work session to order at 6:08 pm8 
9 

2. ROLL CALL:10 
Present: Commissioners Garry Conner, Steve Boggs, Peggy Yoder, Chair David 11 

Stein, and Lori Gibbs (6:13 p.m.).  12 
13 

Staff: Chris Workman, City Manager; Patrick Depa, City Planner. 14 
15 
16 

3. Presentations17 
18 

Laura Buhl introduced herself as a Land Use and Transportation Planner with the19 
Transportation and Growth Management Program.  She explained that the20 
Transportation and Growth Management Program stems from two departments, Oregon21 
Department of Transportation and the Department of Land Conservation and22 
Development.  She explained that the purpose of their program is to link land use and23 
transportation planning.24 

25 
26 
27 

4. ADJOURNMENT:28 
There being no further business, Chair Stein adjourned the work session at 7:24 p.m.29 

30 
SIGNED:      ATTEST:31 

32 
______________________________ ______________________________33 
David Stein, Chair    Ashley Howell, Building Permit Clerk34 

Agenda Item #3.2 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



1 

PHILOMATH PLANNING COMMISSION 1 
MINUTES 2 

July 29, 2019 3 
4 
5 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Stein called the Public Hearing to order at 6:00 pm6 
7 

2. ROLL CALL:8 
Present: Commissioners Gary Conner, Joseph Sullivan, Lori Gibbs, Steve Boggs, 9 

Peggy Yoder, and Chair David Stein.  10 
11 

Staff: Chris Workman, City Manager; Patrick Depa, Planner; and Ashley 12 
Howell, Building Permit Clerk. 13 

14 
3. CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC HEARING15 

3.1  File Number: PC19-02, PC19-03, PC19-04, PC19-05, PC19-06, PC19-0716 
  Applicant: Scott Lepman Company 17 
  Application Type: 18 

• Master Plan (PC19-02)19 
• Industrial Flex Space (PC19-03)20 
• Indoor Storage/Outdoor Storage – Boat & RV (PC19-04)21 
• RV Park (PC19-05)22 
• Conditional Use Permit (PC19-06)23 
• Lot Coverage Variance (PC19-07)24 

Location: 617 N 19th St., Assessor’s Map 12612, Tax Lot 100, 200 & 201 25 
26 

Commissioner Gibbs and Commissioner Conner confirmed they listened to the audio from the 27 
previous hearing on July 15, 2019, and familiarized themselves with the record. 28 

29 
Staff Report- City Planner, Patrick Depa summarized the Staff Report.  He explained that this is 30 
a Master Plan Development industrial mixed-use.  He stated that this project has three specific 31 
proposed uses; indoor/outdoor storage and boat storage, and an RV Park.  He stated that all of 32 
these uses are permitted and allowed in the industrial districts that they reside in.  He explained 33 
that this development has been reviewed under Master Plan Development, which has more 34 
scrutiny and direction toward the Comprehensive Master Plan.  He stated that none of the uses 35 
can be separated and must be reviewed together.  He discussed the six cases to review and 36 
that some of these require Site Design Review.  He stated that Master Plan Overlay is 37 
considered heavily on the comprehensive policies, which include very detailed studies.  All three 38 
uses support the policies of the Comprehensive Plan.  He discussed the Site Design Review 39 
and that it focuses on design, layout, paving, building materials, signage, parking, and 40 
connectivity to the surrounding community.  All conditions were met or exceed in review.  He 41 
explained the Conditional Use for the allowance of the two viewing platforms within the riparian 42 
corridor, and a Variance of 0.3% total lot coverage over the allowed amount.  He stated again 43 
that all six cases could be voted on together because of the application being a Master Plan 44 
Development.  He suggests that the conditions be read off with approval, and be specific to The 45 
Conditional Use and The Variance.  46 

47 
48 
49 
50 
51 
52 
53 

Agenda Item #3.3 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



 

2 
 

 54 
Public Testimony  55 
 56 
Lawrence Johnson, Philomath, OR – Mr. Johnson spoke in opposition to the project. He noted 57 
that he had reviewed the applicant’s rebuttal.  He discussed the Army Corp of Engineers’ report 58 
that was just recently released with several findings that raise concerns for him.  He believes it 59 
may be premature for the Commission to make a decision until that study is closed.  He also 60 
noted the two wells that are in the applicant’s rebuttal and questioned the use of the two wells.  61 
He questioned how the City would measure the use of water in regards to sewage if the two 62 
wells on site are used and not metered City water.  He stated that in the application and reports 63 
there should be a Citizen’s Advisory Report that he has yet to see.  He believes that the Staff 64 
Report should have taken into account the studies that are still pending.  He requested that the 65 
record be kept open until some of the significant reports have been resolved.   66 
 67 
Ann Buell, Philomath, OR – Ms. Buell spoke in opposition to the project.  She read her 68 
statement into the record (see supplemental agenda item A).  She stated that a five-minute time 69 
limit for comment is unreasonable due to the significant amount of material in the application 70 
and rebuttal.  She requests that the Commission review the public testimonies and hopes that 71 
the Commissioners have gone through the Comprehensive Plan and matched where the 72 
application is in violation.  She stated that the taking of species that are endangered is illegal, 73 
questioned why that is not in the Comprehensive Plan, and how the Commission will handle it.  74 
She spoke to Rana Foster’s written testimony, noting various traffic concerns, endangered 75 
species in the project area and local wildlife.  She addressed the 3,500 yards of fill that may be 76 
dumped into Newton Creek.   77 
 78 
Jeff Lamb, Philomath, OR – Mr. Lamb spoke in opposition to the project.  He spoke to 79 
Commissioner Sullivan’s previous comments regarding the decision making process in 80 
congruence with the 1999 Comprehensive Plan.  He questioned why all six cases are being 81 
considered under one vote of approval.  He explained that the Army Corp of Engineers, the 82 
Oregon State Land and Conservation Department and the DEQ are all seeking public comment 83 
for their written reports.  He stated that he spoke to the DEQ and they replied that it is unusual 84 
for applicants to submit applications before such studies are completed.  He requested that the 85 
record be held open due to the permit requested of the Army Corp of Engineers.  86 
 87 
Catherine Biscoe, Philomath, OR – Ms. Biscoe spoke in opposition to the project.  She stated 88 
that she serves on the Philomath Budget Committee.  She would like to review the infrastructure 89 
costs of this project to the City and that there are still concerns to the Water Treatment Plant 90 
costs.  She noted the priority two and three costs that are based on a population increase.  She 91 
explained that those concerns may or may not include our debt service or inflation.  She is 92 
concerned about failing sewer lines in the northeast part of town and that there is currently no 93 
plan in the budget to replace those lines.  She quoted the book titled, “Better not Bigger,” 94 
excerpt from page 46, speaking to urban growth and the demand on public resources.  She 95 
noted that neither the Staff Report nor the application address the cost to the tax paying citizens 96 
of Philomath.  She discussed that this project will not provide many opportunities of 97 
employment, but have high and negative impacts on the City’s water and infrastructure.  She 98 
believes that the project will be a gated community that only benefits itself and in no way applies 99 
to affordable housing.  She discussed the Army Corp of Engineers’ environmental impact report.  100 
She asked the Commission to hold the record open until the completion of the Army Corp of 101 
Engineers’ report be completed.   102 

Agenda Item #3.3 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



 

3 
 

Kathy Hensman, Philomath, OR – Ms. Hensman spoke in favor of the project.  She read her 103 
statement into the record (see supplemental agenda item B).  She stated that she is pro-growth 104 
and believes that the RV Park would be a sustaining business.  She believes that cliental 105 
traveling to the coast would utilize the RV Park and local businesses.  She discussed that the 106 
positive impact on local businesses would compensate for the traffic that the RV Park would 107 
bring.  She believes growth in the City is not going to stop, nor should it.  She discussed that 108 
after reviewing the Staff Report, she does not see any issues with water, sewer, or power that 109 
should stop a development such as this.  She stated that the only issue that would affect local 110 
residents would be traffic.  She stated that in her experience in various RV Parks, she has yet to 111 
see an overabundance of children living in the parks.   112 
 113 
Sandy Heath, Philomath, OR – Ms. Heath spoke in neutrality of the project.  She read her 114 
statement into the record (see supplemental agenda item C).  She stated that she is the current 115 
elected chair of, Grow Philomath Sensibly.  She believes that the Comprehensive Plan is out of 116 
date and does not allow the city to grow in a sustainable and sensible way.  She showed the 117 
City Organizational chart that has the citizens of Philomath on the top of the chart, meaning their 118 
well-being should be first.  She explained that this project is in no way affordable housing.  She 119 
stated that any contribution to the community would be limited due to cliental likely shopping in 120 
Corvallis.  She stated that the City has said publicly that it would not promote high water use 121 
industries.  She noted the City’s water report from West Tech Engineering.  She stated that the 122 
applicant would be dumping 3,400 square yards of fill on one acre.  She noted that any person 123 
may request in writing a public hearing by August 21, 2019 with the Army Corp of Engineers.  124 
She noted ODOT’s concerns and believes that the application is incomplete. She requests that 125 
the record be held open until all reports and studies have reached their comment periods 126 
specified by law.   127 
 128 
Tim Wenger, Philomath, OR – Mr. Wenger spoke in neutrality of the project.  He stated that he 129 
lives close to the RV Park.  He discussed his property location and that he would be looking 130 
directly at the RV Park from his home.  He explained that because of this he may not be in favor 131 
of the RV Park; however, he would be in favor of this park because of its contribution to local 132 
restaurants.  He believes this project will in fact provide some affordable housing.   133 
 134 
Robert Biscoe, Philomath, OR – Mr. Biscoe spoke in opposition to the application.  He stated 135 
that he conquers with most of the previous opposition comments.  He asked the Commission to 136 
keep the record open due to the issues with the Army Corp of Engineers and to wait until the 137 
findings and possible testimonies are processed.  He explained that although traffic studies 138 
have been done, he is unaware of how one studies traffic changes concerning cliental that are 139 
extended stay versus short term.  He questioned whether as a community we are offering 140 
affordable housing and that the City should do a better job of making sure they are providing it.  141 
He hopes that the Commission is listening to the public and that the citizens of Philomath will be 142 
taking the brunt of the impact that this project will have on the City’s current infrastructure. 143 
 144 
May Dasch, Philomath, OR -- Ms. Dasch spoke in opposition to the project.  She read her 145 
statement into the record (see supplemental agenda item D).  She quoted a write up from the 146 
Corvallis Gazette Times discussing the drop in ground water supply.  She discussed various 147 
proposed uses of the City’s two wells.  She asks that the Commission consider the City’s 148 
tenuous water supply when considering the Lepman application.  She stated that water is the 149 
key to our community being successful and that the City’s supply is proving unpredictable.   150 
  151 
Chair Stein called a break at 6:55pm.   152 
 153 
Chair Stein called the Public Hearing back to order at 7:05 p.m.  154 
 155 
 156 

Agenda Item #3.3 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



 

4 
 

Presentation by Applicant 157 
 158 
Mr. Scott Lepman spoke in rebuttal to the opposition. He stated that he also submitted a written 159 
rebuttal addressing the concerns of the July 15, 2019 opposition.  He explained that there have 160 
been concerns raised at the present meeting, as well as additional written testimony that they 161 
would like the opportunity to rebut.  He spoke to the development process of the proposed 162 
Storage Units and RV Park.  He explained that that the Army Corp of Engineers and 163 
Department of State Lands are two agencies that address filling in a wetland.  Mr. Lepman 164 
addressed a large diagram, also presented at the July 15, 2019 meeting, to further explain to 165 
the public where fill would be placed.  He noted that there are two large bridges that are going to 166 
cover the wetlands and will not be affecting two creeks on the industrial property.  He noted that 167 
the biggest impact is the storm water quality feature.  He stated that they would be creating a 168 
wetland, but that it would be referred to as a, “dry pond.”  He stated that although the pond is 169 
not technically considered a wetland, it would function as such and treat the storm water before 170 
it enters Newton Creek.  He explained that the reason for the dry pond being incorporated into 171 
the project is due to the lack of access to a public road, specifically Highway 20.  Furthermore, 172 
he noted that Oregon Department of Transportation determined the location of the public access 173 
road due to specific guidelines. He explained that the decision of public road access by Oregon 174 
Department of Transportation was the reason for determining the location of the dry pond 175 
treatment facility.  He stated that this project is only affecting low-value wetlands.   176 
 177 
Commissioner Yoder asked Mr. Lepman what the term, “low-value wetland,” means.  Allan 178 
Martin, Wetland Consultant for the Lepman project, explained that wetlands are categorized 179 
based on the functions, values, and services provided.  Whether or not the wetland is forested, 180 
the native plants present, and whether it has been degraded or affected by previous 181 
development determine these qualities.  He noted that the forested wetland in the riparian zone 182 
provides habitat, water storage and a number of higher wetland services.  He further explained 183 
that the wetland affected by the dry pond has a low number of native plants and is not forested.  184 
He noted that there is only about a half of an acre that would be affected by the dry pond.   185 
 186 
Chair Stein asked for clarification on the storm water treatment facility, or dry pond, and how it 187 
would function.  Bryan Vandetta introduced himself as the Project Engineer to address Chair 188 
Stein’s question.  He explained that the storm water quality pond has a dead zone in the bottom 189 
of it that is around six inches deep that would remain there throughout the changing of seasons.  190 
When the storm water flows into the dry pond, it provides a sump for the settlement carried by 191 
the storm water.  He explained that the dry pond also has aquatic vegetation that then treats the 192 
water and helps remove some of the pollutants, as well as an infiltration system.  He stated that 193 
the function of the pond is sized based on the impervious area that it is treating.  He explained 194 
that the storm water quality pond functions as a wetland, although it is not referred to as such.  195 
He noted that the site owners would pay into mitigation bank for the existing wetland displaced 196 
by the dry pond.   197 
 198 
Mr. Lepman noted that they have worked very hard to address the issues and concerns that 199 
were presented at the previous meeting, and would like the opportunity to rebut the concerns 200 
presented at this meeting.  He asked for clarification of the policy in regards to closure of the 201 
record and final decision.    202 
 203 
Mr. Workman explained that several members of the public have made a request to hold the 204 
record open.  There was discussion and clarification of the municipal code applicable to this 205 
public hearing and holding the record open.  He stated that the public hearing could be closed, 206 
but the record held open until a certain date and time selected by the Commission   207 
 208 

Agenda Item #3.3 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



 

5 
 

There was discussion of the process that could take place should the application be approved.  209 
Mr. Workman clarified that any appeal process would go through The City Council.  He noted 210 
that it is very common that applications are approved with specific conditions of approval before 211 
any decisions from the Department of State Lands or Army Corp of Engineers are determined.  212 
Once approval is received and all conditions are met, the City would then issue any permits for 213 
utilities and building to the applicant.  He stated that because The City only has 120 days to 214 
make a local land use decision, and it is very uncommon for the Department of State Lands and 215 
Army Corp of Engineers to make a decision in less than 120 days, most cities and counties 216 
have to approve land use applications with similar conditions of approval.   217 
 218 
MOTION:  Commissioner Sullivan moved/Commissioner Boggs second, to hold the record open 219 
until August 13, 2019 at 5:00 p.m. and reconvene on August 26, 2019.  Motion APPROVED 6-0. 220 
(Yes: Sullivan, Conner, Gibbs, Boggs, Yoder, Stein.  No: None.)  221 
 222 
The Planning Commission agreed by consensus to close the public hearing.   223 
 224 
Mr. Workman clarified that the public record will be left open until August 13, 2019 at 5:00 p.m.  225 
The applicant will have until August 20, 2019 at 5:00 p.m. to submit final written rebuttal limited 226 
to new issues raised in the present meeting and any testimony submitted up to August 13, 227 
2019.   228 
 229 
Chair Stein closed the public hearing at 7:42 p.m.  230 
 231 
 232 

4. ADJOURNMENT: 233 
There being no further business, Chair Stein adjourned the meeting at 8:00 p.m. 234 
 235 
SIGNED:      ATTEST: 236 

 237 
______________________________ ______________________________ 238 
David Stein, Chair    Ashley Howell, Building Permit Clerk 239 

Agenda Item #3.3 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019 

1 
 

                                                       Philomath Planning Commission 
Agenda Item Summary 

 
 Title/Topic: Lepman Mixed-use Industrial Master Plan   
__________________________________________________________________ 
  
Meeting Date:   August 26, 2019            
Chair:   David Stein  
Staff: Chris Workman, City Manager, Patrick Depa, Associate Planner   
File#:                   PC19-02 Master Plan Development  
                            PC19-03 Industrial Flex Space 
                            PC19-04 Indoor Storage/Outdoor Storage - Boat & RV  
                            PC19-05 RV Park 
                            PC19-06 Conditional Use Permit  
                            PC19-07 Lot Coverage Variance 
 
 
ISSUE STATEMENT: 
 
This is a summary of the proceedings for the Lepman Mixed-Use Industrial Master Plan Development 
before Planning Commission and includes recommended motions and suggested direction.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Chair Stein opened the public hearing for the Lepman Master Plan at Planning Commission on July 15, 
2019 to introduce the project to the Commission and the public. It was determined that due to the size 
and complexity of the development, the Commission would hold the Public Hearing open for a second 
meeting on July 29, 2019.  The Commission and public heard a summary of the Staff Report and its 
findings, the applicant’s presentation, followed by public testimony from proponents, opponents and 
neutral parties. Input from governmental bodies, including Benton County and ODOT, was provided in 
written form prior to the hearing and incorporated into the Staff Report.  Following the first hearing, the 
applicant submitted a rebuttal limited to the issues raised at the first hearing.    
 
On July 29, 2019 the Planning Commission met and continued the Public Hearing.  The Commission 
then heard additional public testimony from proponents, opponents and neutral parties, including 
multiple requests to leave the record open, and the applicant gave a brief rebuttal.  The Planning 
Commission decided to close the Public Hearing but keep the record open for 14 days.  Four letters 
were received from the public which were forwarded to the applicant for review and comment. The 
applicant was given until August 20th to respond to the additional remarks and inquires and submitted a 
final rebuttal by the deadline.  The comprehensive rebuttal from the applicant is included in the meeting 
packet.  
 



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019 

2 
 

Again, any relevant testimony and evidence must concern the approval criteria described in the staff 
report or other criteria in the Comprehensive Plan or land use regulations which the person testifying 
believes to apply to the decision. 
 
ASSOCIATE PLANNER RECOMMENDATION: 
The Development Code requires that an approval or denial shall be based upon the criteria and 
standards considered relevant to the decision. The written decision shall explain the relevant criteria 
and standards, state the facts relied upon in rendering the decision, and justify the decision according 
to the criteria, standards, and facts. The Planning Commission may also issue appropriate intermediate 
rulings when more than one permit or decision is required. This is referring to the conditional use permit 
and their variance request.  
In conclusion, staff has reviewed the applicant’s plans for this development and can confirm, with 
certain conditions of approval, that the applicant meets or exceeds all of the criteria required for 
approval. Therefore, we respectfully recommend approval of this master plan overlay, the conditional 
use permit, and the requested variance with the below conditions.   
 
PLANNING COMMISSION OPTIONS: 
 
The Planning Commission can approve the development in three (3) separate motions approving the 
Master Plan Development first, followed by the conditional use permit for the observation decks in the 
riparian corridor and the variance request for point three percent (.3%) over the maximum allowed lot 
coverage. 

OR 
 

The Planning Commission can deny the development also in three (3) separate motions denying the 
Master Plan Development first followed by the conditional use permit for the observation decks in the 
riparian corridor and the variance request for point three percent (.3%) over the maximum allowed lot 
coverage. If the Planning Commission chooses to deny the development, the Planning Commission 
shall establish their own findings and address the criteria the Planning Commission believes supports 
the motion to deny the development.     
 
RECOMMENDED MOTIONS 
 
Master Plan Development: 
 
“I MOVE TO APPROVE the application for the Lepman Industrial Master Plan Overlay proposal based 
on the findings of fact contained in the Staff Report dated June 26, 2019, for files:  
 
PC19-02 Master Plan Development  
PC19-03 Industrial Flex Space 
PC19-04 Indoor Storage/Outdoor Storage - Boat & RV  
PC19-05 RV Park 
 
subject to the conditions of approval in the Staff Report and submitted below.”  
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019 

3 
 

Conditions of Approval: 
 

1. The applicant shall submit notice of the development to the Department of State Lands (DSL) 
and the Army Corp of Engineers and any determination for mitigation will rely on those findings 
and conclusions. All mitigation shall be completed by the applicate prior to any construction 
permits being issued.  

2. It should be noted that the comments contained in both the city’s engineering consultant and the 
county engineer’s reports (see attached) are not the result of a full engineering analysis of the 
proposed development. More detailed analysis and detailed design work may be required as the 
project moves forward. This includes:  
 

a) Any easements required for construction of public utilities shown on the approved 
construction drawings must be granted to the City prior to start of construction on Phase 1. 

b) Some changes of the placement and access points to the water mains along 19th Street 
may need to be addressed during a final engineering review.  

c) Additional hydrants and their locations as outlined in Westech’s engineering report will 
need to be finalized and installed accordingly.  

d) That all title work from the adjacent property to east shall be provided to determine the 
rights for both emergency access drives and all proposed utility easements within those 
drives. 

e) All other conditions that are bulleted in the engineer’s report as outlined in Exhibit A shall 
be followed or addressed at time of final engineering review.   

3. That the applicant shall pull all the required permits for any work in the Oregon Department of 
Transportation (ODOT) and Benton County right of ways.    

4. That a copy of all existing covenants and restrictions, and general description of proposed 
restrictions or covenants (e.g., for common areas, access, utilities, parking, etc.) shall be 
submitted to the City. 

5. That a time frame be submitted to the city and its engineers pertaining to how long the outdoor 
storage of boats and recreational vehicles is to remain stored on a gravel surface area rather 
than a paved surface or a variance must be sought. 

6. That the applicant provide payment in lieu of the construction of the public bike/pedestrian path 
at this time at today’s cost to be held in escrow. However, the sixteen (16) foot easement shall 
be recorded at the time of other easement recordings.  

7. That the applicant obtain approval for a conditional use permit for the encroachment into the 50’ 
riparian setback of the two viewing platforms and part of the private trail system in the RV Park.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

8. That the applicant obtain a .3% variance to the maximum allowed lot coverage on these parcels.    
9. That all future uses proposed in the industrial flex space building shall require individual 

planning approval prior to occupancy.  
10. That the applicant obtain Benton County approval for the partial vacation of 20th Street.      
11. That the applicant donate five feet (5’) of right of way along 19th Street to meet the city’s TSP 

requirement for width of a minor arterial road.  
12. That the applicant install a bus stop pad and covered shelter along 19th Street with placement 

approval by City and the County.  



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019 

4 
 

 
 

OR 
 
“I MOVE TO DENY the application for the Lepman Industrial Master Plan Overlay proposal, conditional 
use permit and requested variance, based on the findings of fact developed by the Planning 
Commission.” 
 
CONDITIONAL USE:  
 
“I MOVE TO APPROVE the conditional use to allow for observation decks to encroach into the Newton 
Creek Riparian Corridor based on the findings of fact contained in the Staff Report dated June 26, 
2019, for file 
 
PC19-06 Conditional Use Permit”  
                                                                                OR 
 
“I MOVE TO DENY the conditional use to allow for observation decks to encroach into the Newton 
Creek Riparian Corridor based on the findings of fact developed by the Planning Commission.” 
 
Lot Coverage Variance: 
 
“I MOVE TO APPROVE the application for a .3% variance to the maximum allowed lot coverage based 
on the findings of fact contained in the staff report dated June 26, 2019, for files:  
 
PC19-07 Lot Coverage Variance” 
 
                                                                                                 OR 
 
“I MOVE TO DENY the application for variance based on the findings of fact developed by the Planning 
Commission.” 
 
 



Sandy Heath 
340 N 13th 
Philomath OR 97370 

Planning Commission: 

I want to address a comment that Commissioner Stein made to community members in the gallery at the end 
of the July 15th meeting: 
Those comments suggested that the testimony made by some citizens is not based on facts. 

Mr. Stein, I can assure you and the other Commissioners that there are several community members who 
contribute countless hours of research and development of facts and information to be used in public 
testimonies. Any statement stated as fact is indeed gleaned from official documents, records and statements 
made by city officials and staff. No doubt, some comments are also personal and from the heart. 

● To my case and point, this Commission and other entities of our city government has continued to
ignore the evaluation of WestTech Engineering and some experts on the Mayors’, Water Panel Forum,
that Philomath may face water supply difficulties in the future. Difficulties that may lead to shortages
and/or restrictions due to water availability and quality. The report advises the City of Philomath to
seriously think about restricting high water usage developments in the future.
This information has been repeated time after time and yet has been largely avoided when determining
any such future development of the future.
For those of you who were not in attendance, I am sharing the link to the video produced during the
event.

https://www.facebook.com/cityofphilomath/videos/445935315960321/ 

As stated in the 1983, Philomath Comprehensive Plan: 

 Philomath’s Citizen Involvement Program was approved by the Land Conservation and Development 
Commission (LCDC) in March of 1976. The Philomath Planning Commission was appointed to serve as 
the Committee of Citizen Involvement (CCI). 

1. The City of Philomath shall continue to hold public hearings on all comprehensive plan and
zoning ordinance amendments.

2. The City of Philomath shall provide for ongoing citizen involvement in the planning process of
continuing to follow the approved Citizen Involvement Program

3. Finally, Philomaths’ Comprehensive Plan is decades old and we must begin the process of
adopting a new more modern Plan for our city. It’s very difficult for all of us to work with a vision
that is more than 3 decades old.

Thank you for your time and attention to my testimony. 

Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019

https://www.facebook.com/cityofphilomath/videos/445935315960321/


Planning Commission - Written Testimony to Open Record,  Lepman Project 19.02 - 19.07 
Aug 8, 2019 
 
Sandy Heath 
340 N 13th St. 
Philomath OR 97370 
 
During the Planning Commission Meeting on July 29, 2019, City Manager, Chris Workman stated that it is 
standard practice for the Planning Commission to go ahead and give approval on a project that may not have 
the land use reports in, such as ODOT, Army Corp of Engineers, EPA and so on. My observation is, standard 
practice is not necessarily best practices. 
This is a very large project and I think that it should not be hurried through the processes that have been 
created to insure that the design and work of the project are done as prescribed by these agencies that have 
the tools and direction to protect our citizens, local community resources and the biological treasures under 
protections. 
 
Also, I would like to hear the answer to Commissioner Steve Boggs’s question about the storm drainage 
coming off of the perspective RV Park. It is my understanding that there is a 25’ drop in elevation from the RV 
Park to Mary's River which Newton Creek empties into. This seems like a tremendous amount of water 
displacement from the RV Park that may sometimes be  4-6” of rain water in a day during wet winter months. I 
don’t see how this is not going to cause a problem. 
 
I am shocked that our City Planner, Patrick Depa had no idea if the water would run into Newton Creek and 
that it would drain downhill to Mary’s river. I would think that the person responsible for seeing that all of the 
criteria are met from the developers application would understand the project well enough to answer a few very 
simple questions that most of our citizens can answer. 
 
I have submitted my written comments to the Army Corp of Engineers on the subject of dumping fill into a 
wetland area and  scrutiny of a red flagged former high industrial and agricultural site and other questions. I 
would urge the Commission to wait until the request for comments expires from each of the local, state and 
federal agencies to make a well informed decision on this development.  
As I have testified to many times before, I am not anti-growth! I only ask that the guidelines set forth are 
followed to the best of our ability.  
 
By its own guidelines, the state does not expect Philomath to grow substantially unless it has the hard and soft 
infrastructures to sustain such growth. 
 
Thank you for your time. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Philomath Planning Commission  
Aug 13, 2019   record comment, from July 26, 19. 
PC19-02,03,04,05,06,07  
 
Dear Philomath Planning Commission,   
   Aug 12, 19 applicant has not presented follow up response to  July 26 
hearing testimony, possibly this is not required at this time?   
   Possibly the public will be  unable to provide rebuttal comments before 
Aug 13, five pm written record closes, as a  short time period if applicant  
does provide hearing  comment Aug 12 or 13th by five pm.   
 
  The online City Web Page public announcement for this land use is missing 
PC19-07 in the title.  The pdf of the announcement in the case file has 
PC19-07 in the title.  
    
  The online City Web Page public announcement lists one street address for 
this application. The site has two street address: 2952 SW Main 12 7 12 Tax 
lot 100  and  
617 N19th  12 6 12 Tax lot 200/   Tax Lot 201 12 5 07   
 
  PC19-06 Conditional Use Permit application details two impacts to Newton 
Creek.  Applicants discussion in staff report details three impacts to Newton 
Creek.  Conditional Use Permit PC19-06 may be in error or invalid.   
 
  There is no written or visible indication there are other materials in the 
record which support the entire application from  what is posted on City web 
page.  Can applications please, in future  declare, denote and specifically 
state  that the complete record is available at City Hall to be printed at cost 
to the public.   
   
   A large portion of the record is not available on line for public review.  
The public has  no idea what is physically  present  or not in the record we 
see on line,  and materials that are referenced, in applicants discussion may 
be missing from the record at City Hall.  We need to go cross reference, 
photo copy and then hope we have everything.     
  Planner Depa was unable to share copies of or citation to their location of:  
PDF copies, of:  EXB  I-1, 2,3 and K-1,2,3  noted in EXB B1 B2 page15.    

Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



I found, by asking City Staff that City Hall has all these  materials. I asked  
City Hall – City Manager Staff, if these materials at City Hall could be noted 
as available,  and added to land use application, as a list of materials which 
state they exist and their exhibit number, which are all not on line.   I 
assumed the record on line was complete, until reviewing and needing more 
facts, and not finding exhibits that are important to the applicants arguments, 
and presentations in land use requested.  
  City Hall City Manager staff did not post up an additional list of what 
materials are at City Hall  that are all not in the City website online packet 
for this application, as per my request.  
  Hopefully Planning Commission was able to see the complete record in 
paper since the public has no digital  access to  the complete record.  
 
  This is a huge application which cross refers in every section,  to other 
parts of this application, and other land use requests.  Many  other parts as 
exhibits are not present in the digitized, on line record of materials.  
 
For the conditional use permit, there is no accounting for the amount of lot   
coverage that I can see.    
  Should the  application contain a factual list of all the lot coverage usage 
for the RV Park  in which the conditional use is being requested?  
A question I have, is all the infrastructure inside the Fifty Foot Riparian 
Buffer between the 100 foot flood zone and the fifty foot buffer,  not  
counted as use area inside the RV Park Tax Lot?      
 
  Lot coverage EX J-2 is missing from online files to confirm square footage 
for RV Park and PC19-06 review.  There is not accounting for square foot 
use as a list of uses and area,  to show actual total area involved.   Lack of 
rear setback in HI zone allows this land use to be designed placing all uses at 
the fifty foot riparian buffer, or in the fifty foot riparian buffer.   
 
  In RV Park,  all users/guests/space lessee's will go into the fifty foot 
riparian buffer to use as their open space, back yard,  private space, and as 
long term outdoor spaces.   The lack of rear setback allows this developer to 
use the fifty foot riparian buffer as open space use and this use should be 
accounted for as square foot usage,  and added to percent use allowed in MC 

Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



HI zone for this use which is new to Philomath.    PC may  allow these uses 
within decreased  amount of HI Zone within Philomath Land use allocations.    
 
  Conditional use for a path should also look at all the other uses inside the 
fifty foot riparian buffer here in PC19-06.     
 
  Tax lot 201  12 5 07  2178 sq feet land locked.  Is this part of RV Park 
area that is not being used but could be counting toward RV Park  none use 
percent coverage?   
  Tax lot 100 has 5.46 acres comp plan zoned HI to change to R3 multi 
family residential, or higher eventually, is this included in total area use 
calculation for percent use in tax lot 200 RV park and conditional use permit 
request?   Is the  future right of way the applicant is paying into escrow 
account to build a future bike path on the west side of Newton Creek which is 
connected to tax lot 200 via 20th/19thstreet area, is this Right of Way area as 
square footage  added to tax lot 100 use evaluation for area openspace 
requirements?       
 
Newton Creek Greenbelt 
  PC19-06  involves Newton Creek main stem, East Fork Newton Creek and 
Fire Pond in tax lot 200.    Newton Creek area in MUC is a Special Use  
18.55.060 p.51 Natural Resource Overlay    
Natural Resource overlay use must apply to DSL 18.55.030  
[ORD720 section 7 {2.5.201},203] 
18.55.050 Procedure A. The procedure for reviewing any development within 
natural resource overlay zone.  1. vegetation removal…  
 
District- Newton Creek Greenbelt with specifically defined areas the City has 
denoted as significant Riparian Corridor in City Riparian Inventory for 
Newton Creek and Marys River.  This is information is missing or has  not 
been included in the evaluation PC19-06.   
 
 Newton Creek has had multiple State of Oregon OWEB projects completed 
in this area and has had Philomath High Conservation Biology Classes under 
instruction of the former Mr. Jeff Mitchell working on this site,  in 
conjunction with the Marys River Watershed Council over multiple years.   
Policy 1 Greenbelt along Newton Creek Riparian Corridor. 

Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



 
   A list of all the conservation plans and grants issued and paid for is 
available upon request.  One study is called ‘Newton Creek Wetland 
Management Plan.’ In past Jeff and Marys River Watershed Council and 
other dedicated volunteers worked to establish this mill site as  natural 
resource  incubator to house multiple local non profits, and to be used all 
year as a living classroom for all Philomath Schools.    
   
 
 
PMC18.55.020 Natural Resource Overlay Zone  
     A. Significant wetlands 
     B. Riparian corridors- Riparian Protection zone has 2 components  
the area within channel banks to top of bank  
and the protection zone 50 feet horizontal from top of bank   
 
  Riparian protective zone is designated Significant Riparian corridor of City 
Riparian Inventory.   
Placement alteration of riparian area by placement of structures or 
impervious surface may be permitted upon demonstration that equal or better 
protection for the remaining on site riparian protection overlay zone area will 
be insured through restoration of riparian areas, enhanced buffer treatment or 
similar measures.   In no case shall such alterations occupy more the 50% of 
the width of Riparian area measured from the upland edge of the corridor.    
Page 52 MUC  {ORD 720 7 [2.5.207],2003} 
 
  For the percent use inside the fifty foot riparian buffer for this application, 
is this under fifty percent for RV Park/plus conditional use use area 
encroachment within the active wetted East Fork Newton  Creek channel 
and over the fire pond in two locations? Plus bridges, culvert replacement, 
buried trenched utilities, overhead(hanging over water) and buried pipes, 
trails, pathways which also cross Newton Creek mainstem and Newton Creek 
East Fork multiple times add  to this conditional use evaluation?   
   And are all these crossings, and borings under the creek considered as  
part of the lot coverage total for PC19-06?   
   If the use is over fifty percent inside the Fifty foot riparian buffer, the 
request for Variance is invalid under PMUC.  

Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



 
Sensitive Lands – Wetlands, significant trees, steep slopes, floodplain and 
other natural resource areas designated for protection or conservation by the 
Comprehensive Plan.  
  All development in designated Sensitive Lands and historic overlay 
Districts shall be reviewed as Type II application.  
[ORG.720 Sec7{4.2.4},2003]   Chapter 18 page 122.  
 
 
 
18.110.050 Site Design Review application submission requirements  
  e. Potential natural hazards include 100 year flood plain  
  f.  Resource areas, including marsh wetland stream wildlife habitat 
identified by City or any natural resource regulatory agency as requiring 
protection.  
 
  Flooding information is missing from the application. 100 year flood plain 
delineation is not corroborated with FEMA flood plain documentation for use 
of Newton Creek Main stem, Newton Creek East Fork and Fire Pond for this 
conditional use permit application PC19-06.  Peir height is how high, how 
deep are these areas, how much flood flow occurs in East Fork Newton 
Creek? How will well use at the Fire Pond impact the way the Fire pond 
functions as a water body with two decks over it?    
 
  The Philomath Scout Lodge has one of the largest populations of Western 
Pond Turtle in Benton County, how does conditional use for pier construction 
of decking into East Fork Newton Creek impact Western Pond Turtle use of 
East Fork of Newton Creek should this section of creek be migratory for 
Western Pond Turtle from Scout Lodge to mainstem Newton Creek and 
Marys River?         
  Marys River Watershed Council worked on rehabilitation of The Philomath 
Scout Lodge Pond for Western Pond Turtle, so they  had to do some 
evaluation of Western Pond Turtle use and ecology in this area.   Do 
Western Pond Turtle use the Fire Pond?  Do turtle use any of the land around 
East Fork Newton Creek as a nesting area?   
 

Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



  How does using East Fork Newton Creek for decking area impact salmonid 
species Northern Cut throat Trout found to move into this area from Marys 
River?   How does the applicant propose to conserve water quality, water 
temperature for the conditional use permit?  
 
  State Land Use Goal 5  Protective zone 100 foot flood plain floodway 50 
foot riparian buffer greenbelt along Newton Creek riparian Corridor.  
Goal Five may not allow development inside the fifty foot riparian buffer 
greenbelt.   
 
A. Criteria  Pool deck is 98% inside fifty foot riparian buffer out  
on piers on East Fork Newton Creek  600 feet over Newton Creek. 
Fire Pond overhanging Deck in two areas 
  480 sq feet overhang from west side community center  
  300 sq feet overhang deck on piers on west side of Fire Pond   780 sq feet 
over Fire Pond of decking and drilled what type of pier construction    
is within fifty foot riparian buffer.  The application does not share how wide 
the areas are for use of 780 sq feet of deck, or 600 feet of deck on East Fork 
Newton  Creek.  
 
Lighting  
Deck lighting, pool lighting, pond lighting, path lighting are not well defined 
and only stated as ground lighting.  
And lighting in all these areas will change and  impact riparian corridor. 
LED lighting bright white invades dark areas and creates day in areas that 
never should be lite 24/7.  
  There is no provision for protection in MUC from lighting in riparian 
corridor.   Does use inside fifty foot riparian corridor allow lighting?  
 
EX B-4  Cond. Use allow the construction of three overlook platform within 
Newton Creek Riparian corridor.  All other crossings over Newton Creek are 
not counted as part of this conditional use?    
  -Bike path, pathways, cart ways, bridges, culvert crossings, waterline, gas, 
sewer, electric, phone, cable,  suspended water pipes all will impact riparian 
corridor in RV Park tax lot 200.  What percent of use for all uses inside the 
riparian corridor should be addressed under a Conditional Use Permit if there 

Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



are more built items other then three decks which will go into the active 
floodplain and riparian fifty foot buffer of Newton Creek, East Fork Newton 
Creek, and over the already buried second fork of  East Fork Newton Creek?   
 
Noise 
  The  use of decking over active creek areas,  and fire pond will negatively 
impact Newton Creek in this area if these areas of decking are to be use  
24/7.  
 
EXB3 page29 of 59 “More land has been left open than required by 
minimum set back and lot coverage requirements in HI Zone.”   
 
 HI zone for this use requires no rear setbacks, so all RV pad and all other use 
is put at back of   HI zone, up against fifty foot Riparian Buffer Zone.  HI 
use  here takes full advantage to  designed with no rear  yard setback from 
Newton Creek Fifty foot riparian buffer.   And all infrastructure not making 
money is in fifty foot riparian buffer.   
  RV pads will use space inside fifty foot riparian buffer as their own 
individual, outdoor living area.  This use should count toward square footage  
land coverage use in application PC19-06.   
  What percent of tax lot 200 is  built up against fifty foot riparian buffer?   
How does this site design supportive of  land area left open,  if the fifty foot 
riparian buffer is a sensitive land use area and there is no areas where buffer 
is being used as an actually,  buffer to separate this zone HI use, from 
Newton Creek’s sensitive riparian corridor which floods and erodes and 
needs to be shaded, planted, and replanted when it erodes?    
 
  Does the city inherit all of the fifty foot riparian corridor as a utility they 
manage  after x time from development?  
 
 Will the City take over the operation of all stormwater facility in this tax lots 
after x time?  If so how does this dedication get paid for in the long run, a 
tax increase to rate payers?     
 
  The applicant has not shared how they are using this area minimally.  The 
application appears to have no listing or accounting for the total area, in use, 
that is planned, which accounts for  all the use total square footage but 

Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



application notes use square footage area is under 50% MUC limit.   One 
acre = 43,560 sq.feet.   Lot coverage RV Park =7.89 acres of 50% of 16.03 
acres. Max lot coverage allowed 14.427 acres. EXB3 page 1 of 59.  
 
  EXJ2 shows buildings, paved areas and sidewalks to make 7.92 acres.   
Applicant may not have provided an accounting of all square feet of all uses 
in tax lot 200.   RV pad/spaces which have no set back from the fifty foot 
riparian buffer,  and all area’s other infrastructure  to be used by humans as 
designed, within the fifty foot riparian buffer, will be used as outdoor space, 
this impact may not be called developed square foot use but it is use to this 
area 365 days a year, all the time.  
 
  HI has minimal side set back,   RV pads are naturally narrow and long RV 
and will be supportive of increasing  density per foot of land use by more 
humans in HI Zone. This density increase will impact the areas which are not 
developed and or to be developed, Greenbelt Land Trust site, and Newton 
Creek, any remaining openspace in tax lot 100 with  T and E species and 
ancient Oregon White Oak Forest the bike path will go through.  
Development will eliminate 5.46 acres of Oregon White Oak Forest in the 
entire area in tax lot 100, with no recourse in law for any protection to 
declining Oregon White Oak habitat, or threatened and endangered species.   
  The city can reduce this impact by moving the  west side Newton Creek 
bike path conditioned use to 20th Street.  If the city inherits this bike path, 
and builds it they may be up against usfws need to mitigate for the loss of 
listed species here.      
 
  Lack of buffer to Newton Creek because of the entire sites  use of fifty 
foot riparian buffer as a public right of way/openspace and infrastructure 
location space, places increased overall total site impacts to the area water 
quality and ecology of these habitats, before they are developed to 100 
percent use. Beaver elimination and use of pesticides and herbicides in all 
landscaping will damage  the current level of Newton Creek’s ecology and 
water quality.    
 
  Use of fencing in all areas will  eliminate  wildlife passage over and 
across these tax lots. Western Pond Turtle may use Newton Creek and  East 
Fork Newton Creek to reach Scout Lodge Ponds from Marys River and this 

Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



land use  may decrease or stop this turtle  passage due to lighting, noise, 
water level changes, pets attacking wildlife, human construction and  
interference within the active channel of these waterway.   Scout Lodge has 
the biggest  
Western Pond Turtle population in Benton County.  Scout Lodge is investing 
in keeping this turtle population for the long term.  
 
  Contamination of Fire pond, Newton Creek East Fork, Fire Pond from 
human use at these overlook decking structures, human dumping cigarettes, 
trash into these water bodies.   Unclear how these constructions will intact 
with noted significant fire pond  vegetation, area flooding, area fish and 
wildlife.  Chapter 18.110 PMC.  
  Sensitive Lands Chpt 18.55 PMC (B)(2)  
  Area botany on site: Willow, ash, alder, cedar, wetland edges-cattail, sedge 
and  rushes will not be retained due to no significant bole/tree trunk size/ 
caliper dimensions?  
 
  How is this application for conditional use planning on protecting the area 
significant vegetation?   
 
Policy 5- No wetland disturbed within RV Park.  Page 11 of 42 in 7/11/2019 
Staff Report.  EX I-2 - 3 Decks over creek.    Fire pond and active channel 
and riparian corridor of Newton Creek are wetlands.   
  Decking construction of pressure treated lumber could add these chemicals 
to the fire pond and to East Fork Newton Creek as they drain, age, leach 
pressure treatment chemicals. Plastics decking over time, exposure to 
elements,  may also leach chemicals and plastic materials.  Peir construction 
materials in the active channel and flood plain of  East Fork of Newton 
Creek is not disclosed.    
  In flood flow events, the landscaping and infrastructure inside fifty foot 
riparian buffer and on piers may be impacted by erosion, flooding, as creek 
widths are not clearly defined per how large the decking will be compared to 
the  active channel  width and flooded width of East Fork Newton Creek.   
DSL application imagery shows  entrenched, deep channelized mainstem 
creek and debris lodging higher up in shrub tree canopy above top of bank.  
  Fire pond is not clearly discussed in application,  for how it fills with 
water, how the well head casing works here and what happens when it floods 

Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



at the Fire Pond.   Does the Fire pond connect to East Fork of Newton Creek 
hydrologically, during flooding?  
  How does piped fork of East Fork of Newton Creek function during 
flooding? What happens to this buried hydrology here during high flow 
events?  Is this pipe stable? Will it need to be dug up repiped and reburied?     
 
  Should a condition be made to daylight this fork of newton creek’s east 
fork newton creek?     
 
3.  All required public facilities has adequate capacity to service the 
proposal. 
  How does the sanitary sewer lift station function and will it be noisy, and 
placed inside the fifty foot riparian buffer, impacting this area with smell, 
noise from pumping?  Noise shield to Newton Creek may not be a MC 
regulated from HI development.   Does the applicant share  information in 
the application about the lift station operation?  
  This utility right of way/lift station and drainage basin construction  use in 
Newton Creek waterway, riparian, flood plain and fifty foot riparian buffer is 
not clearly described to share how it will impact Newton Creek Greenbelt 
Over lay District.    
 
  Will the pool use be 24/7 with noise, lighting? How does this pool get 
cleaned out? Chlorination, sanitation and all pool chemical should be directed 
to the sanitary sewer outfall and no  drained to the Newton Creek as storm 
water outfall will be here.   
 
Page 30 of 59  Condition of approval needed for Private Fire Hydrant 
design.  
 
  Storm Water new private accessways – release rate is the same as no 
development release rate.   EX B3 Page 30  EX L-2 Preliminary Storm 
Water Report is missing from the on line record.    
 
  How is release rate to be the same as no development if RV  site hardening 
could be increased  from what it is square footage wise currently? (roads, 
sidewalk/bikepath/buildings/utilities and the future expansion of RV park into 
RV/Boat storage facility area.  

Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Application says:   
  18.110.060 Site design standard  B-3 page 58-84   
 
MUC states at: 
18.110.060- Approval Criteria           not site design standards.  
 
Partition area EX X-1  Newton Creek multi use  path    as shown in   is 
missing from online document library.  
   Is the area wetland delineation missing a  drainage from the west, 20th 
Street at the new apartments? ‘The Boulevard’- water drains to the east under 
20th and goes downhill,  east bound into tax lot 100 Oregon white oak forest.      
  How is this water drainage  interacting with tax lot 100 at this location?  
In future when this site is developed into housing, this drainage area will be 
more exposed and denuded and maybe these wetland/floodway/floodplain for 
Newton Creek,  will be all filled as it does flood. 
   This puts more constraint on the existing fifty foot riparian buffer area, 
when the Oregon White Oak forest area is developed to R-3 or greater.   
   It may be good to work on adding this drainage area into DSLs review, if 
the  wetland delineation did not look at this area which will be bulldozed 
later with a director level request for development to RS-3 or higher.   This 
5.73 acres in tax lot 100 connects to City Park and could be used as 
mitigation for land use within riparian buffer area fifty foot zone over 50 % 
in all parts of these three land uses.   
  
  Oregon White oak of significant age in combination with area hydrology 
and habitat conditions condusive to checkermallow currently is  high quality 
oak prairie habitat, possibly not found on unmanaged landscapes within the 
Willamette Valley.   Area has wetlands as noted in the Philomath Wetland 
Inventory.  Area possibly floods broadly as well from the constrained east 
side of Newton Creeks filled and concreted edge to the east.  
  Location of Oregon white oak forest is next to Philomath City park, and 
maybe from this developer there is a possibility to apply the use of  system 
development fees,  from this site,  to help support development of this park, 
with connection to bike path that is  to be bulldozed into the riparian 
corridor/fifty foot riparian buffer and over  rare plant area and through cut 
down significant canopied oregon white oak forest and flood plain of Newton 
Creek.  

Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Policy 3 need for bike path easement bike path  
Policy 4 path location to be determined by City of Philomath  
Policy 16 Path connectivity  
Policy 6 Pedestrian safety   is unexplored, how do all these uses secure the 
safety of pedestrians?  
 
  Does city of Philomath need to update the Transportation Plan and 
evaluated bike path locations? When will the City use the City Park land at 
College Street?  Will the Multi use path- bike pathway on west side of 
Newton Creek become the property of the city of Philomath?  If this occurs 
the City will have to deal with ESA requirements to mitigate for the loss of 
endangered Species in order to develop this bike path from escrowed 
account.  
 
  The X-1 Partitioned plat escrowed multi use path- Bike path to this side of 
the development should be conditioned to be placed on Twentieths Street to 
avoid Newton Creek riparian corridor,  massive Oregon White Oak’s and  
endangered  plants, should this developer consider not bulldozing this area 
for RS-3 or higher it could stay as high quality wet prairie habitat, a future  
conservation easement for this developer to use as mitigation area for future 
build out in this watershed.  
 
  Page 52 MUC  {ORD 720 7 [2.5.207],2003}  use of fifty foot buffer area 
requires mitigation, trade off if over fifty percent per of this buffer is used in 
each tax lot?  
  
  Flooding into this oregon white oak forest  area of tax lot 100 may occur 
seasonally, normally even without 100 year flood events, so extensive site fill 
will be needed here.  Fill in the Partitioned  EX X-1 multi use bike path 
may be needed here, cutting down 300+ year old oregon white oak will be a 
large loss to Willamette Valley and  area wildlife habitat found in  Oregon 
White Oak Forests.   
  Conservation of Beaver in this area allow for fish passage for free,  beaver 
support reduction in area erosion and sustained passage of rare fish species 
up into this large wetland braided stream delta watershed area.   
 

Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



  Culvert replacement in this watershed can open up maybe more areas to 
migratory fish passage seasonally.    
Policy 11 -culvert replacement is not clearly discussed, where will  this 
occur    
for the buried fork of newton creek on the east fork of newton creek?  
 
  Working together with Marys River Watershed Council and Benton County 
Public Works, area  culverts can be removed and replaced adding more 
stream habitat to this system.   I have asked Marys River Watershed Council 
about are culvert replacement for Newton Creek in conjunction with the 
historic restoration work on Clements Mill site.  
  Giving back to area ecology is hugely beneficial, since this area is so rich 
in biodiversity, rare plants, even  rarer insects, all here without human 
assistance,  naturally, and over time sustained under development pressure 
which is intensifying.  
  Rare plants and insects are sustained in Newton Creek Watershed.  This 
site hosts rare fish, rare plants and possibly rare insects as Monarch butterfly,  
and forested habitat with Newton Creek mainstem hydrology flooding 
seasonally. The drainage is  ready to be unlocked from concrete confines to 
meander, and become less entrenched with beaver working for free to 
hydrologically  restore Newton Creek if given the chance and resources.  
FEMA map shows waterway meander that currently do not exist on the 
Clements Mills site  due to concrete confines on east side of Newton Creek.     
  Moving the escrow funded, future city owned?  west side  multi use 
partition area bike path out of the flood plain of Newton Creek at tax lot 100,  
conditioning its location   to 20th street  would be helpful in contributing back 
to area ecology.   City of Philomath directs where this bike paths will go.   
  Twenty-th street is a few meters to the west and this much concrete to the 
west will  not cost much to get rid of 1000s of feet of concrete and x dump 
truck loads of fill for this bike path to the future city park at College Street.       
  Funding for this bike path could be put to other uses from these SDC’s in 
this area. Toward future  conservation of the Oregon White Oak and rare 
checkermallow site perhaps.  
PC19-04 Self Store-  
  How are building heights and orientation to Main Street designed to 
comply to 18.45.060?    Should all 6 , 3 and 2 story buildings be built set 
back away from Highway 20/34 Main Street to offer welcoming views to the 

Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



entrance to Philomath?  How does a 6 story wall building x feet long at very 
south end of tax lot 100 not create a  stark unwelcoming wall of cinder block 
to visitors and residents who have to look at this wall every day?   
  Currently apartment complex Mill Pond Crossing to the east is  a massive  
wall of unwelcoming buildings massed and placed  next to Highway 20/34.   
The wall of buildings to the north of 20/34  may have been a variance with 
zero set back.  
  The Storage Depot/self store PC19-04 will be the same massive wall 
expanse  of unwelcoming construction, shading out  highway surface of 
20/34 and may be a  safety hazard if this area has not sun to melt ice on 
20/34, accidents may increase here due to this developments height.   
  Does City of Philomath or The Philomath Chamber of Commerce, or any 
nearby neighborhood Association, CityParks Dept.  have  welcoming 
policies for the  city entrances to Main Street?     Will this use PC19-04 
Self Store in two buildings which are  6/3 stories at x sq feet,  degrade 
forever  any existing ambiance/calming and architecturally welcoming land 
use  policies that could apply to entrances of the city of Philomath?   
Should these policies be conditioned into the City of Philomath Land use 
code to decrease the damage this development could have on an entrance to 
Philomath because of the mass and height of these building at the very south 
edge of tax lot 100?  
 
  What are front side setback requirements for HI frontage on Main 
Street/Highway 20/34?  
 
“18.45.060 Building height. 
The following building height standards are 
intended to promote land use compatibility and 
flexibility for industrial development at an \ 
approx. community scale: 
A. Base Requirement. Buildings shall be no 
more than 50 feet in height and shall comply with 
the building setback/height standards in PMC 
18.45.030. 
B. Performance Option. The allowable building 
height may be increased to 80 feet, when approved 
as part of a conditional use permit. The develop- 

Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



ment approval may require additional setbacks, 
stepping-down of building elevations, visual buff- 
ering, screening, and/or other appropriate mea- 
sures to provide a height transition between 
industrial development and adjacent nonindustrial 
development. Smokestacks, cranes, roof equip- 
ment, and other similar features that are necessary 
to the industrial operation may not exceed 75 feet 
in height without approval of a conditional use per- 
mit. [Ord. 734 § 1, 2005; Ord. 720 § 7[2.3.150],” 
 
 
  Policy 11 - culvert replacement fish passage  
is not clearly defined to this development.  Where are culverts designed?  
  Will developer have to replace  existing site culverts here?   Will main 
entrance to RV Park be a bridge, and failing culvert be removed at RV Park 
Entrance off of 19th?  
   Does Policy 11  apply to the buried east fork of the east fork of Newton 
Creek?  Do all the crossing internally of Newton Creek, and East Fork 
Newton Creek are to be culverts?  How are all these crossings fish friendly, 
turtle friendly and functional over the long term?  Western Pond Turtle may 
move from the Marys River up Newton Creek and then move to Scout Lodge 
somehow, across land or using East Fork of Newton Creek/then overland to 
pond systems around the Philomath Scout Lodge.   
  Will these culvert degrade and stop fish passage, turtle passage and who 
will pay to repair these culverts?   
  See Oak Creek drive culvert replacement-Skull Creek underway currently 
by Benton County.    
 
  Should this developer be conditioned to have funding for the future,  to 
work at restoring fish passage to culverts and bridges he builds over Newton 
Creek that fail, for fish passage.  To infuture,  have the ability to fix these 
culverts if the  City  of Philomath has jurisdiction over wetted channel of 
Newton Creek, East Fork of Newton Creek?  When these internal culvert 
fail, who pays to restore fish passage? Who idenfies there are problems with 
fish passage inside this development from failing culverts?  
 

Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



  Flex Industrial Space Use in Future shall be a condition of approval. Page 
23 of 42 in 7/11/2019 Staff Report. 
 
Safety 
  How is this land use request dealing with public safety? How safe it this 
land use from people interested in staying at the RV Park, with no known 
mailing address or phone number, and who may have the ability to be 
unlawful?  
  Should the City of Philomath  Police Dept. be aware of all people in the 
RV park, at all  times?   This land use will bring in anyone and who can pay 
the high price to stay at this location, and possibly commit criminal acts from 
the safety/cover of no known address,  of this RV Park on Philomath and 
Benton County.  
  How safe are students on College Street/19th Street/Green Street, at six 
thirty in the am, in the dark, with no bus shelter,  from this type of person 
who is maybe able to stay at this RV Park?    ‘Safe Routes To School’ 
analysis was done for the City of Philomath and is part of Public Works 
documents on line, but appears to have not been incorporated into a current 
version of the City  of Philomath’s Transportation Plan, as 17J does not seem 
to know of this report, nor do Mid Columbia Bus Company LLC.        
 
    Thanks, Rana Foster 980 SE Mason Place, Corvallis, Oregon.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 

Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019



Agenda Item #4.1 
Meeting Date: 8/26/2019


















































































	00 Agenda 082619
	CITY OF PHILOMATH
	980 Applegate Street
	PO Box 400



	3.1 July 15, 2019 Draft Minutes
	3.2 July 22, 2019 WS Draft Minutes
	3.3 July 29, 2019 Draft Minutes
	4.01 AIS Discussion and Deliberation
	File#:                   PC19-02 Master Plan Development
	PC19-03 Industrial Flex Space
	PC19-04 Indoor Storage/Outdoor Storage - Boat & RV
	PC19-05 RV Park
	PC19-06 Conditional Use Permit
	PC19-07 Lot Coverage Variance
	PC19-02 Master Plan Development
	PC19-03 Industrial Flex Space
	PC19-04 Indoor Storage/Outdoor Storage - Boat & RV
	PC19-05 RV Park
	PC19-06 Conditional Use Permit”

	4.1 Written Public Testimony 081319
	Written Public Testimony 081319 T1
	Written Public Testimony 081319 - T2
	Written Public Testimony 081319  T3
	Written Public Testimony 081319 - T4
	Written Public Testimony 081319 - T5
	Written Public Testimony 081319 - T6
	Written Public Testimony 081319 - T7

	4.10 Applicant Rebuttal



